
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION, 

Plaintiff, 
v. 

Mikael Marczak, a/k/a Michael Marczak, 
individually, also d/b/a Virtual PC 
Solutions, First PC Solution, Direct PC 
Solution, Virtual IT Supports, Global 
Innovative Services, and as an officer of 
Conquest Audit Corporation, 

Wahid Ali, individually, and as a manager 
of Virtual PC Solutions and Global 
Innovative Services, and 

Conquest Audit Corporation, a corporation, 

Defendants. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

Civil Action No. 12-CIV-7192 (PAE) 
[Rel. 12-Civ.-7186] 

usnr- sn:"'Y 
DOCUMENT 
ELECTRO:'\ICALLY FILED 
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DATE FILED: //10/').()llf-

FINAL DEFAULT JUDGMENT AND ORDER FOR PERMANENT INJUNCTION AND 
MONETARY JUDGMENT AS TO DEFENDANT WAHID ALI 

On September 24, 2012, plaintiff Federal Trade Commission ("FTC" or "Commission") 

commenced this action, under Sections 13(b) and 19 ofthe Federal Trade Commission Act 

("FTC Act"), 15 U.S.C. §§ 53(b) and 57b, and the 7 5 5

15 U.S.C. §§ 6101-6108, to obtain a permanent 

injunction and other equitable relief against defendants Mikael Marczak, a/k/a Michael Marczak, 

and Wahid Ali in connection with the marketing and sale of computer security or computer-

related technical support services. On September 25, 2012, the Court granted a Temporary 

Restraining Order against the Defendants; and on October 9, 2012, the Court entered a 
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Preliminary Injunction as to Wahid Ali. (Doc. Nos. 15, 21.) Despite being properly served and 

having notice of this action, Defendant W ahid Ali has failed to respond to the Complaint, make 

an appearance in this action, or otherwise take any steps to contest these proceedings. 

Accordingly, pursuant to Rule 55( a) ofthe Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, the Clerk of Court 

entered default against Defendant Ali on February 7, 2014. (Doc. No. 60.) 

Having considered the Declaration and exhibits filed in support of said motion, it is 

ORDERED AND ADJUDGED that Plaintiffs Motion for Default Judgment against Defendant 

is granted as follows: 

FINDINGS 

The Court, having considered the Complaint and all motions, declarations, exhibits, and 

memoranda of points and authorities filed in this action, finds that: 

A. The Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this case and the parties. 

B. Venue in this district is proper under 15 U.S.C. § 53(b) and 28 U.S.C. §§ 1391(b) and (c). 

C. Defendants' activities as alleged in the Complaint 6 1 . r a t 4 2 1  T  / T 1 4 4 j  0 . 0 2 0 9  T 2
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(Doc. No. 60.) 

H. Defendant Ali made false or misleading statements in connection with his marketing, 

selling, and distributing of computer security or computer-related technical support services in 

violation of Section 5(a) ofthe FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a) and of Section 310.3(a)(4) ofthe 

Telemarketing Sales Rule ("TSR"), 16 C.F.R. § 310.3(a)(4). 

I. Defendant Ali, in the course of telemarketing goods and services, has engaged, or caused 

a telemarketer to engage, in initiating an outbound telephone call to a Person's telephone number 

on the National Do Not Call Registry in violation ofthe TSR, 16 C.F.R. § 310.4(b)(1)(iii)(B). 

J. Defendant Ali, in the course of telemarketing goods and services, has initiated, or caused 

others to initiate, an outbound telephone call to a telephone number within a given area code 

when he had not, either directly or through another Person, paid the required annual fee for 

access to the telephone numbers within that area code that are included in the National Do Not 
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relating to damages, are deemed admitted and taken as true. Au Bon Pain Corp. v. Artect, Inc., 

653 F.2d 61, 65 (2d Cir. 1981). 

0. The Court has authority, pursuant to Section 13(b) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 53(b), to 

grant injunctive and other ancillary relief, including rescission or reformation of contracts, 

restitution, the refund of monies paid, and the disgorgement of ill-gotten monies, to prevent and 

remedy any violations of any provision of law enforced by the FTC. 

P. The Court has authority, pursuant to Section 19 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 57b, and 

Section 6(b) of the Telemarketing Act, 15 U .S.C. § 61 05(b ), to grant such relief as the Court 

finds necessary to redress injury to consumers resulting from Defendant Ali's violations of the 

TSR, including the rescission or reformation of contracts, and the refund of money. 

Q. The Court finds that, absent a permanent injunction, Defendant Ali will likely violate the 

FTC Act and the TSR in the future. 

R. The Court finds that the equities weigh in favor of granting a permanent injunction, and 

that such injunction is in the public interest. 

S. This Order is in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other civil or criminal remedies that 

may be provided by law. 

T. Entry of this Order resolves Plaintiffs claim Tc 1.541 500est. any 



DEFINITIONS 

For the purpose of this order, the following definitions shall apply: 

1. "Assets" means any legal or equitable interest in, right to, or claim to, any real, 



7. "Representative" means any person insofar as he or she is acting in 









determines to be reasonably related to Defendant Ali's practices alleged in the Amended 

Complaint. Any money not used for such equitable relief is to be deposited to the U.S. Treasury 

as disgorgement. Defendant Ali has no right to challenge any actions the Commission or its 

representatives may take pursuant to this Subsection; and 

C. Defendant Ali must submit his Taxpayer Identification Number to a Commission 

representative within ten (1 0) days. 

VI. 

LIFTING OF THE ASSET FREEZE 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the freeze on the assets of Defendant Ali shall 

remain in effect until the Commission has received the total amount required by Section V 

above, provided, however, that Defendant Ali may transfer funds to the extent necessary to make 

all payments required by Section V. Upon payment to the Commission of the total amount 

required by Section V above, the freeze against the assets of Defendant Ali shall be lifted 

permanently. 

VII. 

TURNOVER OF ASSETS HELD BY THIRD PARTIES 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, in order to partially satisfy the monetary judgment 

set forth in Section V above, any financial or brokerage institution, escrow agent, title company, 

commodity trading company, automated clearing house, network transaction processor, payment 

processor, business entity, or person entity, in b u s i n e s s  o r  brokera61 the the 
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over such account or asset to the Commission, by wire transfer pursuant to directions provided 

by counsel for the Commission, or as otherwise agreed to in writing by counsel for the 

Commission, within ten (1 0) business days of receiving notice of this Order by any means, 

including, but not limited to, via facsimile. 

VIII. 

ORDER ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendant Ali obtain acknowledgments of receipt of 

this Order: 

A. Defendant Ali, within 7 days of entry of this Order, must submit to the Commission an 

acknowledgment of receipt of this Order sworn under penalty of perjury. 

B. For five (5) years after entry of this Order, Defendant Ali for any business that 

he, individually or collectively with any other Defendant named in the Amended Complaint, is 

the majority owner or directly or indirectly controls, must deliver a copy of this Order to: (1) all 
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IX. 

COMPLIANCE REPORTING 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendant Ali make timely submissions to the 

Commission: 

A. One (1) year after entry of this Order, Defendant Ali must submit a compliance report, 

sworn under penalty of perjury. Defendant Ali must: 

( 1) identify all telephone numbers and all physical, postal, email, and Internet 

addresses, including all residences; 

(2) identify all business activities, including any business for which Defendant Ali 

performs services whether as an employee or otherwise and any entity in which Defendant Ali 

has any ownership interest; 

(3) describe in detail Defendant Ali's involvement in each such business, including 

title, role, responsibilities, participation, authority, control, and any ownership. 

(4) identify the primary physical, postal, and email address and telephone number, as 

designated points of contact, which representatives of the Commission may use to communicate 

with Defendant Ali; 

( 5) identify all of Defendant Ali's businesses by all of their names, telephone 

numbers, and physical, postal, email, and Internet addresses; 

(6) describe the activities of each business, including the goods and services offered, 

the means of advertising, marketing, and sales, and the involvement of any other Defendant 

named in the Amended Complaint; 

(7) describe in detail whether and how Defendant Ali is in compliance with each 

Section of this Order; and 

12 
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(8) provide a copy of each Order Acknowledgment obtained pursuant to this Order, 

unless previously submitted to the Commission; 

B. For twenty (20) years after entry of this Order, Defendant Ali must submit a compliance 

notice, sworn under penalty of perjury, within 14 days of any change in the following: 

(1) name, including aliases or fictitious name, or residence address; 

(2) title or role in any business activity, including any business for which Defendant 

Ali performs services whether as an employee or otherwise and any entity in which Defendant 

Ali has any ownership interest, and identify the name, physical address, and any Internet address 

of the business or entity; 

(3) any designated point of contact; or 

( 4) the structure of any entity that Defendant Ali has any ownership interest in or 

directly or indirectly controls that may affect compliance obligations arising under this Order, 

including: creation, merger, sale, or dissolution of the entity or any subsidiary, parent, or 
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E. Unless otherwise directed by a Commission representative in writing, all submissions a Commission 



XI. 

COMPLIANCE MONITORING 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, for the purpose of monitoring Defendant Ali's 

compliance with this Order: 

A. Within fourteen (14) days of receipt of a written request from a representative of the 

Commission, Defendant Ali must: submit additional compliance reports or other requested 

information, which must be 



IT IS so ORDERED, this ------+t_O_fh ___ day of+ 2014. / 

16 

f~ -A.[" 
Judge Paul A. Engelmayer 
United States District Judge 
Southern District ofNew York 
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ATTACHMENT A 
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PART 31Q-TELEMARKETING SALES 
RULE 16 CFR PART 310 

Sec. 
310.1 Scope of regulations in this part. 
310.2 Definitions. 
310.3 Deceptive telemarketing acts or prac­

tices. 
310.4 Abusive telemarketing acts or prac-

tices. 
310.5 Recordkeeping requirements. 
310.6 Exemptions. 
310.7 Actions by states and private persons. 
310.8 Fee for access to the National Do Not 

Call Registry. 
310.9 Severability. 

AUTHORITY: 15 U.S.C. 6101-6108. 

SOURCE: 75 FR 48516, Aug. 10, 2010, unless 
otherwise noted. 

§ 310.1 Scope of regulations in this 
part. 

This part implements the Tele­
marketing and Consumer Fraud and 
Abuse Prevention Act, 15 U.S.C. 6101-
6108, as amended. 

§ 310.2 Def"mitions. 

(a) Acquirer means a business organi­
zation, financial institution, or an 
agent of a business organization or fi­
nancial institution that has authority 
from an organization that operates or 
licenses a credit card system to author­
ize merchants to accept, transmit, 

P12298Tj 9.1p.95Em (a )Tj 0t69.57 Tm (P1226705 0 0 7a (a )Tj 0t69.569.90Nm8.6 450.39s )65r35Em (a )Tj "6 374.62 127.33 T6350379.59 135.73229.57 Tm (P12298Tj 9.1p.95Em (a )Tj 0t69.57 5341p.450 TmTj 9.1p.9535.73 Tm (system )Tj 9.604w696tra1pRp 9.1p.953589 093m )144.13 Tm (m (institu3rough Tc 9.284f839s )65r35Em25.43 144.133 053p.9t94f83m )144.13 T700 8.6 398.07 177.73 Tm (a )Tj 0.05 Tc 8.75m ()Tj 9.(P12298Tl8)Tj9Tl8424 9.18



Federal Trade Commission 

(b) Attorney General means the chief 
legal officer of a state. 

(c) Billing information means any data 
that enables any person to access a 
customer's or donor's account, such as 
a credit card, checking, savings, share 
or similar account, utility bill, mort­
gage loan account, or debit card. 

(d) Caller identification service means a 
service that allows a telephone sub­
scriber to have the telephone number, 
and, where available, name of the call­
ing party transmitted contempora­
neously with the telephone call, and 
displayed on a device in or connected 
to the subscriber's telephone. 

(e) Cardholder means a person to 
whom a credit card is issued or who is 
authorized to use a credit card on be­
half of or in addition to the person to 
whom the credit card is issued. 

(f) Charitable contribution means any 
donation or gift of money or any other 
thing of value. 

(g) Commission means the Federal 
Trade Commission. 

(h) Credit means the right granted by 
a creditor to a debtor to defer payment 
of debt or to incur debt and defer its 
payment. 

(i) Credit card means any card, plate, 
coupon book, or other credit device ex­
isting for the purpose of obtaining 
money, property, labor, or services on 
credit. 

(j) Credit card sales draft means any 
record or evidence of a credit card 
transaction. 

(k) Credit card system means any 
method or procedure used to process 
credit card transactions involving cred­
it cards issued or licensed by the oper­
ator of that system. 

(1) Customer means any person who is 
or may be required to pay d4t53t79 205.08 Tm3rd d4t53t79 205.08 Tm3rd sdr on to is 
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failing to disclose truthfully, in a clear 
and conspicuous manner, the following 
material information: 

(i) The total costs to purchase, re­
ceive, or use, and the quantity of, any 
goods or services that are the subject 
of the sales offer; 660 

(ii) All material restrictions, limita­
tions, or conditions to purchase, re­
ceive, or use the goods or services that 
are the subject of the sales offer; 

(iii) If the seller has a policy of not 
making refunds, cancellations, ex­
changes, or repurchases, a statement 
informing the customer that this is the 
seller's policy; or, if the seller or tele­
marketer makes a representation 
about a refund, cancellation, exchange, 
or repurchase policy, a statement of all 
material terms and conditions of such 
policy; 

(iv) In any prize promotion, the odds 
of being able to receive the prize, and, 
if the odds are not calculable in ad­
vance, the factors used in calculating 
the odds; that no purchase or payment 
is required to win a prize or to partici­
pate in a prize promotion and that any 
purchase or payment will not increase 
the person's chances of winning; and 
the no-purchase/no-payment method of 
participating in the prize promotion 
with either instructions on how to par­
ticipate or an address or local or toll­
free telephone number to which cus­
tomers may write or call for informa­
tion on how to participate; 

(v) All material costs or conditions 
to receive or redeem a prize that is the 
subject of the prize promotion; 

(vi) In the sale of any goods or serv­
ices represented to protect, insure, or 
otherwise limit a customer's liability 
in the event of unauthorized use of the 
customer's credit card, the limits on a 
cardholder's liability for unauthorized 
use of a credit card pursuant to 15 
u.s.c. 1643; 

the case of debt relief services, the seller or 
telemarketer must make the disclosures re­t aemarrdhold Tm e�qoj -0.035 Tclosures5 08; 

t aema4.43078 Tb8.6 23ET BT /Susp0 8.<</Con 0  >>BDC 5 Tc 8.1333 2.744195.97 Tm (a6.22ema4.43078 T (m357.4(a)(13978 0 EMC 5ET BT /Tc 8.1333 0 0 11795.83 213.01 Tm (1n )Tjma4.43078 Tbe0 8e9 0 Td (the )T5 )870034 Tc 1.695 0 Td ll )Tj 58.05 Tc 9313sum 2.628 0 Td281e­



§310.3 

services any of the following material 
information: 

(i) The total costs to purchase, re­
ceive, or use, 
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funds in the account, other than funds 
earned by the debt relief service in 
compliance with § 310.4(a)(5)(i)(A) 
through (C), within seven (7) business 
days of the customer's request. 

(6) Disclosing or receiving, for con­
sideration, unencrypted consumer ac­
count numbers for use in tele­
marketing; provided, however, that 
this paragraph shall not apply to the 
disclosure or receipt of a customer's or 
donor's billing information to process a 
payment for goods or services or a 
charitable contribution pursuant to a 
transaction; 

(7) Causing billing information to be 
submitted for payment, directly or in­
directly, without the express informed 
consent of the customer or donor. In 
any telemarketing transaction, the 
seller or telemarketer must obtain the 
express informed consent of the cus­
tomer or donor to be charged for the 
goods or services or charitable con­
tribution and to be charged using the 
identified account. In any tele­
marketing transaction involving 
preacquired account information, the 
requirements in paragraphs (a)(7)(i) 
through (ii) of this section must be met 
to evidence express o8.8 222.87 39gf0 0 8.8 4224 0 9.1524 0 0 
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person's authorization that calls made 
by or on behalf of a specific party may 
be placed to that person, and shall in­
clude the telephone number to which 
the calls may be placed and the signa­
ture664 of that person; or 

(ie7 0 0 8.6 279.34 587.i55 0 02ne to 
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(D) This paragraph (v) shall not apply 
to any outbound telephone call that de­
livers a prerecorded healthcare mes­
sage made by, or on behalf of, a covered 
entity or its business associate, as 
those terms are defined in the HIP AA 
Privacy Rule, 45 CFR 160.103. 

(2) It is an abusive telemarketing act 
or practice and a violation of this Rule 
for any person to sell, rent, lease, pur­
chase, or use any list established to 
comply with §310.4(b)(1)(iii)(A), or 
maintained by the Commission pursu­
ant to §310.4(b)(1)(iii)(B), for any pur­
pose except compliance with the provi­
sions of this Rule or otherwise to pre­
vent telephone calls to telephone num­
bers on such lists. 

(3) A seller or telemarketer will not 
be liable for violating §310.4(b)(1)(ii) 
and (iii) if it can demonstrate that, as 
part of the seller's or telemarketer's 
routine business practice: 

(i) It has established and imple­
mented written procedures to comply 
with §310.4(b)(1)(ii) and (iii); 

(ii) It has trained its personnel, and 
any entity assisting in its compliance, 
in the procedures established pursuant 
to§ 310.4(b)(3)(i); 

(iii) The seller, or a telemarketer or 
another person acting on behalf of the 
seller or charitable organization, has 
m194.62 361.329 8.6 287.75 30a 9.1215 0 0m (the )Tj 6 Tm506 0 0 8.6 
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§ 310.6 Exemptions. 

(a) Solicitations to induce charitable 
contributions via outbound telephone 
calls are not covered by 
§ 310.4(b)(1)(iii)(B) of this Rule. 

(b) The following acts or practices 
are exempt from this Rule: 

(1) The sale of pay-per-call services 
subject to the Commission's Rule enti­
tled "Trade Regulation Rule Pursuant 
to the Telephone Disclosure and Dis­
pute Resolution Act of 1992," 16 CFR 
part 308, provided, however, that this 
exemption does not apply to the re­
quirements of §§ 310.4(a)(1), (a)(7), (b), 
and (c); 

(2) The sale of franchises subject to 
the Commission's Rule entitled "Dis­
closure Requirements and Prohibitions 
Concerning Franchising," ("Franchise 
Rule") 16 CFR part 436, and the sale of 
business opportunities subject to the 
Commission's Rule entitled "Disclo­
sure Requirements and Prohibitions 
Concerning Business Opportunities," 
("Business Opportunity Rule") 16 CFR 
part 437, provided, however, that this 
exemption does not apply to the re­
quirements of §§ 310.4(a)(1), (a)(7), (b), 
and (c); 

(3) Telephone calls in which the sale 
of goods or services or charitable solic­
itation is not completed, and payment 
or authorization of payment is not re­
quired, until after a face-to-face sales 
or donation presentation by the seller 
or charitable organization, provided, 
however, that this exemption does not 
apply to the requirements of 
§§310.4(a)(1), (a)(7), (b), and (c); 

(4) Telephone calls initiated by a cus­
tomer or donor that are not the result 
of any solicitation by a seller, chari­
table organization, or telemarketer, 
provided, however, that this exemption 
does not apply to any instances of 
upselling included in such telephone 
calls; 

(5) Telephone calls initiated by a cus­
tomer or donor in response to an adver­
tisement through any medium, other 
than direct mail solicitation, provided, 
however, that this exemption does not 
apply to calls initiated by a customer 
or donor in response to an advertise­
ment relating to investment opportuni­
ties, debt relief services, business op­
portunities other than business ar­
rangements covered by the Franchise 

§310.7 

Rule or Business Opportunity Rule, or 
advertisements involving goods or 
services described in §§ 310.3(a)(1)(vi) or 
310.4(a)(2)-(4); or to any instances of 
upselling included in such telephone 
calls; 

(6) Telephone calls initiated by a cus­
tomer or donor in response to a direct 
mail solicitation, including solicita­
tions via the U.S. Postal Service, fac­
simile transmission, electronic mail, 
and other similar methods of delivery 
in which a solicitation is directed to 
specific address(es) or person(s), that 
clearly, conspicuously, and truthfully 
discloses all material information list­
ed in §310.3(a)(1) of this Rule, for any 
goods or services offered in the direct 
mail solicitation, and that contains no 
material misrepresentation regarding 
any item contained in §310.3(d) of this 
Rule for any requested charitable con­
tribution; provided, however, that this 
exemption does not apply to calls initi­
ated by a customer in response to a di­
rect mail solicitation relating to prize 
promotions, investment opportunities, 
debt relief services, business opportuni­
ties other than business arrangements 
covered by the Franchise Rule or Busi­
ness Opportunity Rule, or goods or 
services described in §§ 310.3(a)(1)(vi) or 
310.4(a)(2)-(4); or to any instances of 
upselling included in such telephone 
calls; and 

(7) Telephone calls between a tele­
marketer and any business, except 
calls to induce the retail sale of non­
durable office or cleaning supplies; pro­
vided, however, that §310.4(b)(1)(iii)(B) 
and § 310.5 of this Rule shall not apply 
to sellers or telemarketers of non­
durable office or cleaning supplies. 

§310.7 Actions by states and private 
persons. 

(a) Any attorney general or other of­
ficer of a state authorized by the state 
to bring an action under the Tele­
marketing and Consumer Fraud and 
Abuse Prevention Act, and any private 
person who brings an action under that 
Act, shall serve written notice of its 
action on the Commission, if feasible, 
prior to its initiating an action under 
this Rule. The notice shall b4.34 186.27.32 Tm (initiating )a 8.8444 0 03 TTj 5 Tm (persons. ) 194.77 9b 0 03 TTj 0 8r11Tj 9.6041o0 0 8.6 350.32 127.320142. 
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shall include a copy of the state's or 
private person's complaint and any 
other pleadings to be 
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calls to consumers, service providers 
acting on behalf of such persons, and 
any govemment agency that has law 
enforcement authority. Prior to access­
ing the National Do Not Call Registry, 
a person must provide the identifying 
information required by the operator of 
the registry to collect the fee, and 
must certify, under penalty of law, 
that the person is accessing the reg­
istry solely to comply with the provi­
sions of this Rule or to otherwise pre­
vent telephone calls to telephone Prior 
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